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Old Stagecoach Stop Report

by William Bodley Lane, ALA.

THE BUILDING TODAY

The exterlor of the bullding now
looks much as it did about 1890 hav-
ing been restored to this appearance
in1983-84. It has a simple but hand-
some two story gallery porch on the
street front. In the back a lean-to ad-
dition of an early date extends the full
width of the building. Its hand hewn
studs indicating that It was always
largely closed In rooms. Its roof rafters
are in line with the second floor roof
forming a long slope in the back from
the main ridge line down to the first
floor celling line, broken only by two
almost identical dormer windows.

All of this was built before 1900 (ex-
cept for the north dormer, window) so
it is unlikely that there was ever a two
story gallery porch to the rear as sug-
gested in the Natlonal Reglster docu-
mentation.

It is immediately obvious to any ob-
server that the chimneys on thenorth
and south gable ends are of different
design and workmanship and there-
fore probably built at different times.
They both have been extended from a
one story height to that required by
the present two story building. The
first stage of the 1983-84 restoration
left the interior untouched so it is easy
to see that within this an earller core
structure of two seperate log rooms
about ten feet apart existed.

The possibility that the chimneys
are different because they were origl-
nally different but neighboring log
cabins is unlikely since the floors of
the two one story log units are on the
exact same level in line with each oth-
er and built of similar size Red Oak
logs. It is more likely that they are two
large rooms ol a two room log bullding
with "dog trot” semi-open room be-
tween the two log rooms. This fype
building was very commnon in Mis-
sourl in the 1840s through the 1880s.

We had Richard Guyetts of the Uni-
versity of Missourl Department of
Forestry take samples of the logs of
the two main rooms and attempt to
date them In a computerized system
at the Universitly. From his work
Guyette says there Is no doubt that
the two sets of logs were cut in the
spring of the same year. Because of
the small number of annual rings in
the samples there is less certainty
about the year but he is almost sure
that it was 1860.

The "Summary of Chain of Title" by
William Morgan ties in with the above
mentioned evidence for Morgan sug-
gests that loans made In 1860 and
1861 by Pulaski County to the owner
W.W. McDonald for a total of $284
might well have been to finance the
original construction. McDonald sold
the bullding to Willlam Mitchell and
his wile Nancy in 1870.
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THE MCDONALD LOG BUILDING

All the visual evidence indicates
that the south room was used for resi-
dential purposes much before the
north room. The fireplace is bigger (for
cooking) yel of more primitive work-
manship. The logs were whitewashed
at first yet the fireplace already had a

manile piece at that time. Then verti-
cal rough cut boards were installed on
the walls (they are square cut and still
on the walls) and fitted around the
then existing mantle plece. The cracks
between boards were sealed with nar-
row sirips of paper then whitewashed.
The base boards then were only five
inches high according to whitewash
indications. Later the present seven
and a hall inch base was Installed.
Until this time the only interior finish
on the walls of the north room was
whitewash applied directly on the
squared oll logs.
o T
EARLY WALLPAPER

When the earliest existing wallpaper
design was applied to the white-
washed wall boards in the south room
the same design paper was Installed
in the north room as the first finish on
the then new vertical paneling. The
fireplace and chimney were there by
that time. We have not yet been able
Lo date that wallpaper. Three layers of
wallpaper were applied to this board
surface. The second of these is very
handsome and found only in the
north room. It consists of two shades
of gray-green leaves on an off white
ground (vertical repeat 15 inches, hor-
izontal repeat 10 Inches) forming an
overall random pattern of EI‘EETI
leaves. This paper should be docu-
mented and might be worthy of repro-
duction. It may be hard to find a sam-
ple of this paper intact since the white
fleld has been largely eaten away by
Insects years ago. The green leaves
have survived probably because "paris
green” a poison with high arsnic con-
tent was used to make the color.

After the first three layers of wallpa-
per were applied in the north room a
layer of heavy cralt paper was applied
to better cover the cracks between
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If These Are Not Solid Facts!

We Keep No Shoddy Goads,

And Only Ask A Fair Profit On What We Sell.

boards. After that six or seven more
layers of wallpaper have been applied
through the years.

If samples are carefully kept and
separated and noted in their order of
application In the various rooms of
this buillding we would have a good
start on a history of wallpaper In
South-Western Missourl from the ear-
liest days well into the 20th Century.

THE MISSING MANTLE PIECES

One of the most surprising things
aboul Lhese two earliest and little
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changed rooms is that both of the

large original mantle pleces are miss-
ing. Usually in rooms so little changed
the fireplace openings are closed up
and with stoves installed for better
heat the mantles are left alone and
survive by default.

For some reason these were both re-
moved. Three reasons come to mind
how such mantles might be removed.

1. They are attractive to collectors at
a lime when the bullding is rundown
but these seem to have been removed
before this happened.

2. The commerclal use of the build-
ing made the wall space gained by re-
moval an important matter.

3. Up grading of wall finishes with
heavy paper or wallboard provide a
good opportunily to remove the man-
tles and modernize the rooms.

Certainly there is ample evidence of
conditions number 2 and 3. There is
even evidence thatl they were charm-
ing and in the ploneer spirit of even
earlier limes, il so we may even have
reason number 1.

We can lell quite a bit about the
maniles from the heles lefl in the early
paneling and other evidence ol where
they were Installed against the stone
work of the chimneys. There is also
evidence of how much of the
stonework was intended to show
around the fireplace opening and in
the case of the north room fireplace
the exposed stonework was actually
painted a dark red.

It is interesiing lo nole that the two
manlles were exaclly the same size
(width 77 inches, height 66 inches)
even though the fireplace openings
are different in dimensions. The south
fireplace opening Is 42 inches wide
and 42 inches high. The north fire-
place opening is 39 inches wide and

Continued on page 31
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Continued from page 29

33 1/2 inches high.

If the two were in fact a pair of iden-
tical mantles they may have been
made elsewhere and shipped in. This
was quite common in early Missouri
and they were often a matter of pride
and ollen of finer wood and workman-
ship. It is certainly worth checking the
counly for evidence of similar old
maniles in size especially, most 1860
mantles are smaller than this.

THE 1863 PICTURE OF WAY-
NESVILLE

Belore we trace this bulding's ex-
pansion to its present two story con-
figuration let us consider the idea that
this building might be identifiable in
the 1863 drawing of Waynesville Mo,
by Major Waldemar Fischer, U.S.A.

If it is to be found in the lithograph
by Major Fischer we should look for a
one story building with a single stone
chimney since the evidence in the log
portion and the later enlargement to
its two story configuration indicate
that it would not have become a two
story building in 1863, Well, the Major
seems to be very much taken with the

big stone chimneys he found in Way-
nesville. He shows six of them exag-
geraling their size by quite bit.
Assuming that the large building
near lhe center is the first County
Courthouse, our bullding could be the
one second lo the left of the Court-
house. It is low. long and narrow with
one stone chimney as we might ex-
pect. There is no tweo story building
shown in that area that is wide
enough o represent our fifty fool
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building.

As encouraging as these observa-
tions may be considering the scale
and the military purpose of the draw-
ing, this is an interesting guess at

best.
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THE EXPANSION TO TWO STORIES

The expansion of the building to its
present lwo story confliguration prob-
ably took place all at once or within
three or four years. The same type of
saplings were used as wall studs in
the back first floor extension and the
second [loor new construction. Unfor-
tunately the Universily of Missourl
people were unable to date these
studs at this time.

The MNational Register Nomination
Form states that “lollowing the Civil
War the building was used again as a
stop for travelers and known as the
Pulaski House under the management
of Mrs. M.L. Davis during the 1870's,
The Davis name is not mentioned in
the chain of litle so Mrs. Davis must
have operated the place under some-
one else’s ownership before or after
the two story expanslon.

In 1870 William H. Mitchell and his
wilfe Nancy bought the building and
borrowed $150 from the County. They
sold it in 1874 to A. Bryan and his
wile Mary and they owned it for more
than ten years. If our information on
Mrs. Dawvis is correct it is likely that
she operated Pulaski House during
the Bryan ownership.

In 1888, E.G. Willlams bought the
place and the next year he and his
wife Emaline borrowed $600 from W.
L. Bradlord. This amount of money
would have been enough to enlarge
the building to two stories and the
loan was made a year afler purchase
50 il was nol a parl of the purchase
deal.

Although the present two slory
building could date from the 1870's 1
believe it most likely dates from about
1890 based on my investigations and
the above mentioned Information.
Further research on all of the above
mentioned individuals might give us
more accurale dates,

THE ROUND COLUMNS ON FRONT
GALLERIES

Even though we are restoring the
Old Stagecoach Stop to an earlier date
a few words should be said about the
later major remodeling probably made
in the early 1920s. This work replaced
square columns on the front gallery
porches with plain round eclassical
columns so popular at the time. The
bathrooms were probably added at
about that time as well as the second
dormer winder (the north one) in the
back rool. New and more decorative
porch railings were added to the sec-
ond floor at this time and the sheet-
metal rool was probably Installed
about then too.

In 1922 Mrs. Black, then a widow,
made a loan on the Black Hotel, as it
was called, that may have been used
for this project. Eliza Black lost the
place in 1925 due to a foreclosure on
this loan.

SUMMARY OF CHAIN OF TITAL TO
OLD STAGECOACH STOP REAL ES-
TATE

This land is a part of the Original
Town of Waynesville, Missouri, which
is a poriionol the land for which Ed-
win Swink oblained a patent from the
United States under date of Septem-
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ber 10, 1844, Swink conveyed the 1882 - Deed of trust from E.G.

properly to William Moore who. in
turn. conveyed "25 acres” to Pulaski
County, Missourl, for a county seal.
The dale of filing of the plat of the
original town is not shown on the
records now available. The chain of ti-
tle for Lot 4 in Block 6 commences as
follows:
1853 -
Lawrence
1854 - David B. Lawrence and Nancy
Lawrence, h/w, to C.W. York
1854 - C.W. York to W.W. McDonald
The chain ol title for Lot 2 in Block &
commences as [ollows:
1853 - Pulaski County lo J.uJ. York
1854 - J.J. York to Willlam M. Story
No conveyance from Willilam M. Sto-
1y ahs been found but title to Lot 2
aparenily came into the hands of
W.W. McDonald because the following
chain of title includes both Lots 2 and
4:
1860 - Mortage from W.W. McDonald
toe Pulaskl County (in that era the
county was authorized to loan money
and, in facl, it made many loans se-
cured by real estate] to secure debl in
principal sum ol $100
1861 - Mortgage [rom W.W. McDonald
to Pulaski Couniy to secure debt in-
principal sum of $184 (It might be sale
to guess that these loans were ob-
tained to [finance the original con-
structionol the building or to finance
some renovations of i, but there is
nothing in the oflicial records Lo con-
firm this.)
1870 - W.W. McDonald and Mary J.
MecDonald, h/w, to William Mitchell
1870 - Mortgage [rom W.H. Mitchell
and Nancy E. Milchell, h/w, to Pulas-
ki Counly lo secure principal sum of
$150
1874 - William H. Mitchell and Nancy
Mitchell, h/w, to A. Bryan
1886 - A. Bryan and Mary A. Bryan,
h/w, to James F. Vaughan
1888 - James H. Ross and lsabell
Ross, h/w, to E.G. Willlams

Pulaski County to D.B.

Williams and Emaline Willlams, h/w,
to W.L. Bradford to secure principal
sum of $600

1890 - E.G. Williams and Emeline
Williams, h/w. loJ.L. Johnson

1890 - Deed of trust [rom J.L. John-
son and Mary A. Johnson, h/w, lo
E.G. Williams lo secure principal sum
al $700

1884 - J.L. Johnson and Mary A
Johnson lo Lewis Black [presumably
the reference to the properly among
locals as the "Black Hotel" dates from
this owner.)

1894 - Deed of trust from Lewis Black
and Eliza M. Black, h/w. to Jellerson
Rainey to secure prinecipal sum of
£1400

1928 - Wilbert Shipman and Buck
Shipman. her husband, to Sam T.
Rollins and Cora RHollins; this deed re-
cites that Wilbert Shipman (apparent-
ly a woman) is the only child and sole
heir of Charley A. Black (presumable
referring to Charles Black, ane of the
children of Lewis Black]

In 1935 a partition suil was [iled in
the Circuil Court of Pulaski County,
Missouri, by Gurley T. Black as plain-
tilT against Sam T. Rollins and Cora
Rollins, h/w, and G.W. Black, W.E.
Black, Allie (Black) Nolse, Lanease
Bollinges, Theorald Bollinges, George
Black, Lacy Black, Willie Black,
Sophia (Black] Duncan, Roay A.
Markley. Joe H. Markley, James E.
Bostick, Gladys (Ellsworth) Nunn,
George Ellsworth, Gene Wllsworth
and Phoebe Shockley, Delendants.
The pleadings in the suit recite that:

George T. Black died, leaving as his
heirs: G.W. Black, W.E. Black, Allle

(Black] Noise and Ellie (Black)
Bollinges; and that Effie (Black)
Bollinges died leaving Lanease

Bollinges and Theorald Bollinges as
her heirs;

Lewis Black [apparently referring lo
the son of the original Lewis Black)
died leaving as his heirs: Gurley T,
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Black. George Blae, Lacy Black, Willie
Black. Sophia (Black) Duncan and
Coldie (Blackl Markley: and that
Sophia (Black) Duncan died leaving
Rov A. markley and Joe R. Markley as
her anly heirs:

An allidovit made by J.W. Lane (fa
ther of Ceorge W. Lane) on Oclober
26, 1946, reciles thal Lewis Black
died more than 35 vears prior to that

date leaving his widow., Ellza M
Black, and leaving 9 children: William
Black. Richard Black. Georpe T, Blac.
Phoebe Shocklev, lewis Black. Lou M.
Christeson, Charles Black, Grace
Ellswarth, and Amanda Black. The af
fadavit Jurther =iates that Amanda
Black «died withouwt leaving any de
seendanis, and that Lou M. Christe

William H
1925,

s0n 1'-'r'illl Wils LNe WiOow Ol
Christesonj died February 21,
without leaving any descendants,
1904 - Deed (rom George T. Black and
Martha Black. h/w. and Willlam
Black and Lucy Black, h/w, and Lewis
Black and Clara Black, h/w, and Ed-
ward Black, single, and Richard
Black. single, and Phoebe Shockley
and O.W. Shockley, her husband, and
Lou Christeson and W.H. Christeson,
her husband. and Grace Kelly and Ed-
ward Kelly, her husband, to Amanda
E. Black: this deed reciles that it con-
veys a life eslale lo Amanda E. Black,
to lerminate upon her death or upon
her marriage.
1922 - Deed of trust [rom Eliza M.
Black to Sam T. Rollins and Cora A
Rollins, h/w. lo secure principal sum
ol $300
1922 - Anolher Deed of Trusl from
Ellza M. Black to Sam T. Rollins and
Cora A. Rollins referring to "all of her
interesl as the widow of Lewis Black,
deceased”. This deed of trust was lore-
closed in 1925 by a sale lo Sam T.
Rollins and Cora Rollins. h/w
1927 - Deed [rom Lacy Black, single,
to Sam T. Rollins and Cora Rollins,
h/w; this deed recites that Lacy Black
Is the surviving wile of Willlam J.
Black. and that she is the sole benefl-
clary under his will. which was pro-
bated in Phelps County.
1927 - Phoebe E. Shockley. single, lo
Sam T. Hollins and Cora Rollins, h/w
Grace (Black] Ellsworth died leaving
James E. Bostick. Gladys (Ellswarth)
Nunn. George Ellsworth, Gene
Ellsworth and ["hoebe Ellsworth: and
that the said Phoebe Ellsworth was
subsequently adopted by Phoebe
Shockley (nee Black) and is known as
Phoebe Shockley, one being the

:,_._ T Nl

e Lt,l

L1
wn

\] s ‘:!I.

———— e e
O Heltlers Bajzelic E
e eeem— —

_;_@ﬁ.ﬂ

daughter of Lewis Black and the other
being the pranddaughter of Lewis
Black.)

As a result of this partition suil, the
property was sold at public auction by
John Harris, Sherill of Pulaski Coun-

ty, on March 17, 1936. to Sam T.
Rollins and Cora Rollins, h/w, for
their high bid of 52001

1936 Sam Follins and Corm

Rollins, h/w. to James Tillenngion
and Leona TiUeringtion. h/w

1936 - Deed ol trust from James Tit-
teringlon and Leona Tileringlon. h/w
1o Waynesviille Security Bank 1o se-
cure principal sum of $2000

(Mitennifton and Leona

L

1941 - James
Filterineion. h/w, o AS. McNeese
and Lulu MceNeese, h/w. This deed

CONYeEVs oI S ik "-'-""'Hlul nol con

vey Lhe portionaol the land adjacent to
Hichway 17.

1941 Deed of trust fromA.S. Me-
Neese and Lulu MeNeese h/w, 1o The
Stale Bank ol Dixon to secure princi-
pal sum of 52500

1944 - James Tilterington and Leona
Titeringlon, h/w, to AS. McNeese

and Lulu McNeese, h/w. (This deed
conveys Lol 2]

1944 - Deed of trust from A.S. Mc-
Neese and Lula McNeese, h/w, lo R.K.
Breeden to secure princlpal sum of
$2000. (This deed of trust includes a
recital “this deed of trust covers all
furnishings and household goods In
cabins”)

1946 - AS. McNeese and Lulu Mc-
Neese, h/w, lo WA, Underwood and
Ollie Underwood, h/w, and Mary Un-
derwood Crane; this deed recites that
it conveys and undivided one-half in-
terest 1o the Underwoods and an un-

LA %

| divided one-halfl interest to Ms. Crane.

| James E.

1946 - Deed of trust from the Under-
woods and Ms. Crane to the State
Bank of Dixon 1o secure principal sum
ol 82000,

May 25, 1983 Mary Underwood
Crane, Gail Underwood, and Ruby
Hancock and Mloeyd Hancock. her hus-
band (heirs of W.A. Underwood and
Ollie Underwood] to Gene Farmmham
and Maxine Farmham, h/w, and
Marun andConnie G. Mar-

| tin. h/fw

May 25. 1983 - Deed of trust from
Farnham and Martin to Mary Under-

| wood Crane, et al lo secure principal

-"'i;ﬂ‘ﬁ LﬂWﬁ

sum ol $39.000

June 20 1983 - Gene Farmham and
Maxine Farnham, h/w, and James E.
Martin and Connie G. Martin, h/w. lo
Old Statecoach Stop Foundatlon
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Will Sell Exclusively For Cash or Produce!

And Contidently Invade the Territory of the Time Seller by

Doing A STRICTLY CASH Business!

IT WILL PAY YOU T0 SEE OUR GO0ODS BEFI]HE YOU BUY, NO TROUBLE TO SHI]‘I'I’ THEM,

All persons indebted to us are required to close
up their accounts by cash or note immediately.

Thanking you for past trado, and solciting further favors, we are your's truly,

LEWIS WILSON & CO.

e

W. J. GREMPCZYNSKI,

Dixon, Missouri.

(Photo courtesy of Peggy McKenzle)
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